Regular Board Meeting

TAMALPAIS UNION HIGH 06/11/2024 - 06:00 PM
SCHOOL DISTRICT Kreps Conference Room

395 Doherty Drive, Larkspur, California, 94939
Phone (415) 945-1020; www.tamdistrict.org

MEETING MINUTES

Call to Order at 4:45 p.m;
Closed Session 4:50 p.m.;
Regular Board Meeting 6:00 p.m.
Zoom Link: https://tamdistrict-org.zoom.us/j/98295886311?
pwd=eVpVNIN1QktThGRtUOIYaFpMOVNaZz09
Webinar ID 982 9588 6311; Passcode 597841

Board of Trustees
Leslie Harlander, President
Emily Uhlhorn, Clerk
Karen Loebbaka
Cynthia Roenisch
Kevin Saavedra

Tara Taupier, Ed. D, Superintendent
Attendees

Voting Members

Karen Loebbaka, Board Member
Leslie Harlander, Board President
Cynthia Roenisch, Board Member
Kevin Saavedra, Board Member
Emily Uhlhorn, Board Clerk

1. Call Meeting to Order

A regular meeting of the Board of Trustees of the Tamalpais Union High School District (District) was
called to order in the Kreps Conference Room at 4:46 p.m. A quorum was declared present.

2. Approval of Closed Session Agenda
M/S/C (Loebbaka/Uhlhorn), unanimously.

3. Public Comments on Closed Session Agenda
There were no public comments on the closed session agenda.

4, Recess to Closed Session in the Superintendent's Office

A. With respect to every item of business to be discussed in closed session pursuant to Gov Code
§54956.95: Conference with Legal Counsel



B. With Respect to Every Item of Business to be discussed in Closed Session Pursuant to Gov Code
54956.9(b): Conference with Legal Counsel - Anticipated Litigation

C. With Respect to Every Iltem of Business to be discussed in Closed Session Pursuant to Gov Code
§54957: Public Employee Discipline/Dismissal/Release and/or Reassignment

D. With respect to every item of business to be discussed in closed session pursuant to Gov Code
§54957.6: Conference with Labor Negotiator (TFT/CSEA)

E. With respect to every item of business to be discussed in closed session pursuant to Ed Code
§35146: Confidential Student Matter

5. Reconvene Into Open Session

The meeting reconvened into open session at 6:08 p.m.

6. Announcement of Reportable Action Taken in Closed Session

There was no reportable action taken in closed session.

7. Approve Agenda and Review Norms

M/S/C (Saavedra/Uhlhorn), unanimously.

Ms. Loebbaka read the board norms.

8. Public Comment on the Consent Agenda

There was no public comment on the consent agenda.

9. Approval of Consent Agenda

M/S/C (Saavedra/Roenisch), unanimously.

10. Public Comment for Items Not on the Agenda

The following public comments were submitted to the board via email prior to the meeting:

e Carolyn Shadan wrote that she voted no on Measure A and did not answer the district's recent
survey because she will vote no again and the money is wasted on these surveys, She claimed
that a parcel tax is a forever tax and many like her are budgeting for retirement or are retired,
and cannot opt out. She suggested that the district stop wasting money on surveys and PR
campaigns and start budgeting or fundraising for infrastructure needs.

e Carolyn Shadan wrote another public comment stating that no "education" campaign is going
to change the fact of having to pay a tax for the reality of the public's personal budgets. She
stated that the board should listen to their consultants, and Measure A is going to fail.

o Jennifer Bryant, Archie Williams High School parent, wrote that she was having difficulty
signing her daughter up for the SAT for the 24-25 season. She said that while California
schools are becoming increasingly difficult to get into, many students are applying out of state,
and more than 90% of schools in the U.S. still use SAT/ACT for admissions and scholarships.
She asked that the district host a few SATs and provide students with the opportunities to
realize their full potential.




Public Comments at the board meeting:

e Michael Ardito, Drake High School graduate, stated that the board endorsed non-transparency
by accepting an anonymous donation of $50,000 for an art display in the school's gym foyer,
and the donor was not revealed until the May 1st celebration of Archie Williams' birthday. He
said that members of the community were happy with the recognition of Archie Williams and
the attractive new display, but were sad that none of Archie Williams' family members were
able to attend.

e Benedetto Cico, former Redwood High School parent, stated that the 2023-24 budget
showed that the district paid $11.5M for consultants, and asked how much money goes to
consultants who improve education.

e Suzanne Garcia, Tamalpais High School teacher, addressed the board regarding comments
made by district administrators during the 5/28/24 board meeting about the most recent
MOU for collaboration and test centers. Ms. Garcia encouraged the district to ask for
feedback before making declarative statements as to why the MOU did not pass at Tam. She
stated that Tam high teachers gave feedback at the TFT meeting to not shorten tutorials and
build in flexible collaboration, which the MOU did not accomplish, Ms. Garcia provided her
feedback about the MOU and said that the district lost an opportunity to leverage the
professionalism and expertise of Tam staff in order to best serve students.

There was no other public comment.

Clarifications to Public Comment:

e In response to Mr. Cico's public comments, Ms, Harlander stated that as a general overview,
consultants are sometimes hired in specialty areas that don't warrant hiring full-time staff, or
when current staff don't have the time or expertise. She stated that we don't have engineers
or construction managers on staff.

e |n response to Ms. Garcia's public comments, Dr. Taupier clarified that the district didn't
create the MOU bell schedule, but the teachers did.

11. Superintendent's Report

Dr. Taupier congratulated the district's graduates and wished them luck on their next chapters. She said
that she hopes that we prepared them well,
She reported on the district's graduation ceremonies:

e The Tam Adult School graduation, where she heard many touching and uplifting stories of
hardship to get a diploma, and the importance of family support.

e The Tamiscal graduation was lovely and warm.

e San Andreas graduation was happening during board meeting.

e Redwood, Tamalpais and Archie Williams High School graduations were all on Thursday,
6/13/24.

She also stated that it was a fun time of year to see the graduation celebrations and wished all staff a

safe and refreshing summer, and encouraged them to take a break from social media and let their minds
be still.

12. Trustee Considerations (Please note that times listed for each item are estimated and actual times will
vary)

A. Discuss Potential Facilities Bond Measure Proposal (6:28 p.m.)




Corbett Elsen, Assistant Superintendent of Business & Operations, presented the proposed bond
funding amounts and options to the board, as requested at the 5/28/24 board meeting. Mr. Elsen
presented a summary of the Measure A post-election voter data analysis and conclusions, and
provided a further scaled back funding option of $289M for critical safety facilities needs, as
compared to the $440M option presented at the 5/28/24 board meeting. Mr. Elsen asked the board
to provide direction for a specific potential bond funding amount and associated facilities projects in
order to discuss a draft bond resolution at the 6/25/24 board meeting for a possible November 2024
bond measure.

The board discussed the new funding option, as compared to the previously presented funding
options, and some board members expressed concern about scaling the projects back too much, not
meeting all the critical needs of the district, and then pushing the necessary projects off to a future
board. Some board members requested to see the responses to the district fliers before making a
decision. The board asked Mr. Elsen to present two draft bond resolutions for both the $289M and
$440M funding options and project lists at the 6/25/24 board meeting.

Public Comment:

e Benedetto Cico, former Redwood High School parent, claimed that the district has a bond
in search of a project. He said that teachers should be the last to go if the district can't pass
a bond measure, and that they should fire the administrators instead. He suggested that the
district make a commitment that they will not accept any money from construction
companies that may benefit from a bond, find repairs and other options that save money,
and earn the public's trust. He asked the board to stop trying to convince people that they
need a bond.

e Spencer Sias, former RVSD board member, said that he understands the situation the
district is in and appreciates what the board is trying to do. He said he is not a member of
COST, but he voted against Measure A. He said he's concerned about a good education and
a good environment for it, but the district should bear in mind that voters in November will
be thinking about a lot of other issues, like renewing K-8 tax funding, energy costs, fire
insurance, water rates, and affordable housing. He said that the district should temper the
potential bond and only go after what is most critical. He said that he is increasingly
concerned that the more the district asks for, the greater the chances of failure of the
current parcel tax, and parcel taxes further down the road.

¢ James Holmes, Redwood High School Graduate, said that he appreciates the efforts to
reduce the proposed bond amount, but there may be room to economize. He claimed that
the new bond still shows $72M for a new Redwood High School cafeteria. He stated that
it's hard for the average voter to stomach building a facility to provide two free meals a day
for privileged students, and the district should approach the state senator to exempt us
from the state mandate, or provide a grant to finance it. He said that it's discouraging to
see s0 many repairs needed after generous prior bonds. He also noted that some taxpayers
and columnists will watch to see who are the major supporters of the bond.

e Stacy Sias said that the most important thing is to set up the bond measure for success. She
said that between the Fairfax bond for road repairs, sewer rates, homeowners insurance
rates and the proposed parcel tax in Ross Valley, these are the things that this community
is facing. She stated that a parcel tax impacts young voters, and taxes are a really important
issue. She said, with decreasing enroliment and increasing costs, the district needs to
balance academics against their wants and needs, and what every homeowner is facing in
the area. She urged the board not to compare the district to San Rafael and look at the
bond in context to set themselves up for success.

o Mimi Willard, Coalition for Sensible Taxpayers, agreed with Stacy Sias, and clarified her
statement from the 5/28/24 board meeting. She stated that it's important to make the




right decision, and it's going to be a challenging environment, because every voter is going
to be looking at 3-5 new taxes. She said it's a gamble on the district's ability to convince
people who voted no on the last measure to say yes this time. She said that COST has been
characterized as the bad guys and has offered to talk with the district many times, but
hasn't received a response. She asked the board to keep in mind that they were elected to
represent the entire community.

e Angela Carter, Tamalpais High School Staff Member, asked for clarification about the Auto
Shop and whether it was not going to be updated in all the proposed options. She stated
that, as a special ed teacher, auto shop is a highlight of many of her students' days, and
already losing architecture and engineering last year was a big blow to her students. She
said the potential to lose auto shop would not be great for neurodivergent kids. She said
she understands the position the district is in, in terms of what they need to update, but
stated that we're losing options for kids who operate differently.

There was no other public comment.

Clarification to Public Comment:

e |In response to James Holmes' public comments, Corbett Eisen and Tara Taupier clarified
that the entire cost of the proposed Redwood High School building replacement project is
$72M, which includes multiple buildings, a multipurpose room and $1M in upgrades to the
current cafeteria and kitchen.

e In response to Mimi Willard's public comments, Leslie Harlander clarified that the district
met with COST at the beginning of Measure A, and has met with COST with every
measure. She said that COST wanted to meet with the district this time, but the district
wanted to wait until they decided whether to move forward with a new bond proposal. She
also said that there was a 3-year period when she met with Ms. Willard frequently and
had enjoyed working with her in the past. Ms. Willard said that Ms. Harlander was factually
accurate, but stated that she was talking about the interim period since the failure of
Measure A, and didn't need to wait until there was a final bond proposal.

e In response to James Holmes' comment, Dr. Taupier also clarified that staff never came
forward with a proposal for an $80M bond. She said that staff made a comment that the
estimated cost of roofs and HVAC was $80M, but it was never meant to be the total
amount of a proposed bond.

The board took a recess at 8:02 p.m. and reconvened at 8:08 p.m.

B. First Reading of Update to BP 6146.1: High School Graduation Requirements (8:08 p.m.)

Paula Berry, Sr. Director of Curriculum and Instruction, presented proposed revisions to BP 6146.1:
High School Graduation Requirement. Ms. Berry said that the revisions include:

e The newly approved one semester Ethnic Studies (Community and Consciousness) course
replaced the World Cultures & Geography course, as required by Assembly Bill 101.

e The exemptions were amended to exempt migratory children and newcomer pupils from
district graduation requirements that exceed the state of California
graduation requirements.

For clarification, Ms. Berry provided the definitions of a migratory child and newcomer pupil from
Education code 54441 and 51225.2.

There was no public comment.




C. Hold Public Hearing on the 2024-27 Local Control and Accountability Plan and Local Indicators
(8:13 p.m.)
The board recessed at 8:13 p.m. for a public hearing on the 2024-27 Local Control Accountability
Plan and Local Indicators.

e Maya Estrada, Archie Williams High School student, said that 10 students are being forced
to choose between the environmental focus academy SEA-DISC and all leadership courses.
She stated that when making the master schedule for the 2024-25 school year, school
admin decided to move all leadership courses from 6th period to 3rd period, which directly
conflicts with the SEA-DISC schedule. She said that students are frustrated and
disheartened by the news, and only have 3 days to make this decision. She claimed that
they did not get further clarity from Admin on the issue.

e Grace Garvey, said that after discussing their concerns with Admin, students were
instructed to meet with their Counselors to quickly decide. She stated that students are
worried that by making a decision, it will signal to admin that they don't care about this
topic. She acknowledged the privilege of being part of either one of these programs, but
said students are frustrated that they must choose between them. She stated that many of
the students impacted are already involved in both of these programs, and asking them to
choose is stripping them of the opportunity for continued education and the right to
choose classes. She said that district resources should go to what's best for all students.
She asked that leadership classes be moved to a period that does not conflict with SEA-
DISC, as they should go hand in hand.

e LoRayne Ortega, Archie Williams High School teacher, said that she wanted to build on
what Maya, Grace and what Angela Carter said about the courses offered and the master
schedule. She stated that it is important to her that we take care of all students to
complete a-g courses and meet the graduate profile, and also to uplift students who come
from our most marginalized communities, including neurodivergent students and
newcomers. She said that in order to take care of our kids, we also need to take care of our
teachers. She stated that there are a lot of needs and competing interests, and hopes that
district administrators work with teachers across the district, so they can continue to offer
all the variety of programs we can for as long as we can, even while our enroliment goes
down.

There was no other public comment.

Clarification to public comment:

o |In response to public comment, Dr. Taupier stated that master scheduling is done at the
site level, not the district level, and that the decision to move the classes was not due to
budgetary reasons or teacher cuts. She said she would have to speak to Admin at Archie
Williams to understand why these classes were moved, but that there was no reduction in
programming. Ms. Roenisch suggested that they were possibly moved in order to
schedule leadership courses during the same period, so those groups could work together.
Ms. Harlander asked if Dr. Taupier could speak to the admin team at Archie Williams and
get back to them.

The board reconvened at 8:23 p.m.

D. Discuss 2024-27 Local Control and Accountability Plan Update and Local Indicators (8:23 p.m.)

Dr. Tara Taupier, Superintendent, presented the 2024-27 Local Control and Accountability Plan
(LCAP) update and local indicators. Dr. Taupier started by saying that she would not go over all the




slides, because the data had been covered in many previous meetings. She shared the purpose of the
LCAP, TUHSD's equity vision, mission statement and graduate profile, and the California state
priorities that must be represented in the LCAP. Dr. Taupier thanked members of the Racial Justice
Task Force (RJTF), Lisa Jimenez of Olas Equity Strategists, and all the community members who
provided feedback. She presented the primary goal, focus goals and expected outcomes for all goals,
the feedback process, and an overview of LCAP expenditures. She concluded by sharing why the
LCAP matters, which includes college and job readiness. She stated that all students should be
engaged in learning that is meaningful for them. While she does not believe that everyone needs to
go to college, they need the opportunity to go to college if they choose to do so, either right out of
high school, or 5 to 10 years down the road. She said we know that students who need to remediate
even one course are far less likely to complete a two or four-year degree within 6 years. She said
that preparing students for the future means that they have all the choices available to them.

Ms. Roenisch said that it is important to note that putting people in the position to go to college does
not devalue career technical education (CTE),

Dr. Taupier added that going to the Tamalpais Adult School graduation reminds her that getting a
diploma as an adult is a sacrifice, so having the opportunity to get one in high school is not something
that should be taken lightly. She shared a graphic that showed that the vast majority of TUHSD
students across ethnicities want to go to college. She also highlighted that underrepresented
students are more likely to be in remediation, and said that education disparities turn into income,
housing and health care disparities. She stated that all of these things are related to the quality of life
that we are hoping that our students enjoy. She also shared data that shows that getting a college
degree is worth the investment, in terms of median income, employability, job security, health
insurance and lower unemployment rates.

Dr. Taupier went on to present the 2023-24 LCAP local indicators, which was a more in-depth look
at some of the priority areas, including: appropriately assigned teachers, implementation of state
academic standards, parental involvement and family engagement, school climate, and access to a
broad course of study. She reported that the district met the standards for all local indicators.

In response to scheduling questions, Dr. Taupier shared the process for determining which courses
are run each year. She said that in general, in order for an elective to run, it needs to have at least 25
students in it, because teachers have a contractual maximum number of 150 students, for an average
class size of 30. If a teacher has 5 fewer students over 5 classes, that is almost a full class section.
She said that all core classes are staffed, but sometimes they run small if there is a "bad break". She
also said that they have smaller academic support and algebra classes, in addition to electives, if they
are trying to maintain programming or build up newer programs. She said they can't meet every
need, because they have to take the budget, staffing and enroliment into consideration. She stated
that the district is not currently introducing any new electives at this time, because we already have
so many and need to evaluate them, so we can have robust course offerings and a broad course of
study, and can efficiently and effectively schedule.

One board member commended the 2024-27 LCAP and stated that it feels like an investment in the
future of our students in 10, 20 and 30 years from now. She said she appreciated the time, energy
and thoughtfulness that went into it.

E. Hold Public Hearing on the 2024-25 Proposed Budget and Related Reserve Levels (9:01 p.m.)

The board recessed at 9:01 p.m. for a public hearing on the 2024-25 proposed budget and related
reserve levels,




There was no public comment.

The board reconvened at 9:02 p.m.

F. Presentation and Discussion of 2024-25 Proposed Budget and Related Reserve Levels (approx. 9:02

p.m.)
Corbett Elsen, Assistant Superintendent of Business & Operations, presented the 2024-25 proposed
budget and reserve levels. Mr. Elsen stated that the point of the budget is to align the districts’
financial, human and physical resources to meet the LCAP plan. He discussed the budget reporting
cycle and calendar, national, state and local economic news, the Governor's "May Revise" state
budget proposal, TUHSD 2023-24 estimated actuals, 2024-25 budget and multi-year projections,
and uncertainties and prudence. Mr. Elsen showed economic data on inflation, federal funds rates,
mortgage interest rates, median home values and home price depreciation in Marin. In reference to
the Governor’s May Revise budget, he said that the state budget has gone through a significant loss
of tax revenue, but education funding through prop 98 revenue is relatively protected. He stated that
none of the Governor's May Revision Budget Proposal is expected to impact TUHSD, given our
"hasic aid" status in 2024-25, but could have negative impacts in 2025-26 and beyond.

Mr. Elsen shared the comparison of the 2nd interim budget versus estimated actuals is a projected
net surplus of $695K. He showed multi-year projections that meet the required 17% reserve levels
through 2026-27 (not including any potential increase in staff compensation). He said that, as a result
of our basic aid funding through local property tax revenue, TUHSD is about $26M over the Local
Control Funding Formula (LCFF) entitlement.

Mr. Elsen discussed economic uncertainties, including major, imminent facilities needs that, without
dedicated funding, would divert funding from the general fund (students and staff). He concluded
that pending unfunded, imminent facilities needs, TUHSD is projecting balanced budgets in the
official 3-year multi-year projection and a minimum 17% reserve.

The board thanked Mr. Elsen for the comprehensive presentation.

There was no public comment.

G. Hold Public Hearing on Fee Justification Study and Increase in Developer Fees and CEQA Notice of
Exemption (9:23 p.m.)
The board recessed at 9:23 p.m. for a public hearing on the Fee Justification Study and Increase in
Developer Fees and CEQA Notice of Exemption.

There was no public comment.

The board reconvened at 9:24 p.m.

H. Take Action on Resolution No. 23-20: Adoption of a Fee Justification Study and Increase in
Developer Fees and Adoption of CEQA Notice of Exemption - ROLL CALL VOTE (9:24 p.m.)

Mr. Elsen presented Resolution No. 23-20: Adoption of a Fee Justification Study and Increase in
Developer Fees and Adoption of CEQA Notice of Exemption. He explained that in the state of
California, if you add a residential development or increase the size of your home, and the capacity to
house more people and potentially more students to schools, you are required to pay a developer
fee, which is a one-time fee for school facilities. He stated that the district shares developer fees with
feeder schools and receives about 30% of the fees (relative to the amount of time students spend in




the district). He said that the proposed increase is within the state authorized limits.

There was no public comment.

Motion made by: Cynthia Roenisch
Motion seconded by: Kevin Saavedra
Voting:

Karen Loebbaka - Yes

Leslie Harlander - Yes

Cynthia Roenisch - Yes

Kevin Saavedra - Yes

Emily Uhlhorn - Yes

1. Adopt Resolution No. 23~ 22: Tax Anticipation Note for 2024-25 - ROLL CALL VOTE (9:28 p.m.)
Corbett Elsen presented Resolution No. 23- 22: Tax Anticipation Note for 2024-25.

There was no public comment.

Motion made by: Cynthia Roenisch
Motion seconded by: Emily Uhlhorn
Voting:

Karen Loebbaka - Yes

Leslie Harlander - Yes
Cynthia Roenisch - Yes
Kevin Saavedra - Yes
Emily Uhlhorn - Yes

13. Consent Agenda
A. Approve Draft Minutes of the May 28, 2024 BOT Meeting
B. Approve Personnel Summary for June 11, 2024
C. Ratify Batch and Warrant Details- May 2024
D. Ratify Contracts under $40,000 - June 2024
E. Approve Contracts over $40,000 - June 2024
F. Approve Global Studies Field Trip - London, England - Tamalpais High School
G. Declare as Surplus and Authorize - Microcomputer Accessories - Redwood High School
H. Declare as Surplus and Authorize - Portable Lacrosse Netting- Redwood High School
I. Supplementary Book Approval

14. Trustee Reports

Mr. Saavedra reported that he met with Sal Kahn of Kahn Academy, who spoke about artificial
intelligence and how it will influence the education system. He said he would share some information




with the board.

Ms. Harlander spoke about scheduling an informational meeting for anyone who is interested in running
for the board, and asked Karmela Cleary to send out an email about it. The board also talked about
scheduling a special meeting to discuss the governance handbook and the board self evaluation. Ms.
Harlander said that she hasn't received the board self evaluation results yet, and would add it to a
meeting in August.

Ms. Roenisch requested that we flip the TV screens for the meetings, so audience members can see the
presentations better.

Ms. Uhlhorn stated that she will be out of town for the first August meeting and would like to dial in.

15. Conclusion
Ms. Loebbaka reflected on the board norms.

16. Adjournment
The meeting was adjourned at 9:32 p.m.

ON o
Superintendent

10



